
PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA REVIEW 
December 15, 2016 

6:00pm 
161 st Session of the 9tb Council 

It is this Council's mission "To serve the citizens of Pontiac by committing to help provide an enhanced quality of life for 
its residents, fostering the vision of a family-friendly community that is a great place to live, work and play. " 

Call to order 

Moment of Silence or Invocation 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Roll Call 

Authorization for excused absences for councilmembers 

Amendments to and approval of the agenda 

Approval of the Minutes 

1. December 8, 20 16 

Special Presentation-REDICO 

Departmental Head Reports 

Subcommittee Oral Report - Public Safety 

Community Announcements 

Recognition of Elected Officials 

Public Comment 

AGENDA ITEMS FOR CITY COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 

2. Special Recognition Resolution for Hubert Price. 

Mayor Report 

Clerk, City Attorney and Council Closing Comments 

Adjournment 



December 8, 2016  
 
 

1 
 

        Official Proceedings 
Pontiac City Council  

   161st Session of the Ninth Council 
 

A Regular Meeting of the City Council of Pontiac, Michigan was called to order in City Hall, Thursday, 
December 8, 2016 at 6:00 p.m. by President Patrice Waterman.               
 
Moment of Silence      
 
Invocation –Councilman Williams          
 
Pledge of Allegiance    
 
Roll Call 
  
Members Present: Carter, Holland, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams and Woodward. 
Mayor Waterman was present.  
Clerk announced a quorum. 
 
16-315  Approval of the Agenda with changes to add a public hearing scheduled for January 
5, 2017 regarding the amended of TIFA boundaries.  Moved by Councilperson Woodward and 
supported by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 
 
  Ayes: Holland, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams, Woodward and Carter.    
  No: None  
  Motion Carried. 
 
16-316  Journal of December 1, 2016. Moved by Councilperson Taylor-Burks and supported by 
Councilperson Woodward. 
 
  Ayes: Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams, Woodward, Carter and Holland 
  No: None 
  Motion Carried. 
 
Departmental Head Reports – Deputy Mayor Jane Bias-Disessa 
 
Subcommittee Oral Report – Mark Holland/Real Estate and Kermit Williams/Finance 
 
Community Announcements – Mike McGuiness 
 
16-317  Resolution for approval of a salary adjustment for a Senior Financial Analyst. 
Moved by Councilperson Woodward and supported by Councilperson Taylor-Burks.  
 
Whereas, the Administration and the City Council have agreed to adjust the salaries for the vacant 
position of Senior Financial Analyst; and  
 
Whereas, the budget as approved for FY 2016-2017 has sufficient appropriation in aggregate for the 
position, since the Senior Financial Analyst has been vacant for this fiscal year to date, therefore no 
budget amendment is required for the FY 2016-2017; and  
 



December 8, 2016  
 
 

2 
 

Whereas, Section 2-88 of Article III of the Code of Ordinances states that: “…The Director (of Finance-
emphasis added) may hire such number of full-time, part-time, or seasonal employees as the City budget 
shall authorize to assist him in fulfilling the responsibilities of his position; and  
 
Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved, that the City Council, upon the recommendation of the Mayor approves 
the salary range for the position of Senior Financial Analyst to be between $65,000 and $70,000. 
   

Ayes: Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams, Woodward, Carter, Holland and Pietila 
No: None 
Resolution Passed. 

 
16-318  Resolution for the scheduling of meetings of the Pontiac City Council for 2017. 
Moved by Councilperson Taylor-Burks and supported by Councilperson Pietila. 
 
Therefore, Be It Resolved, that the Pontiac City Council adopts the scheduling of their meetings 
for 2017.  
 
The dates are as follows: 
 

Thursday, January 5, 2017 6:00 p.m. Study Session 
Thursday, January 12, 2017 6:00 p.m. Formal Meeting 
Thursday, January 19, 2017 6:00 p.m. Study Session 
Thursday, January 26, 2017 6:00 p.m. Formal Meeting 
Thursday, February 2, 2017 6:00 p.m. Study Session  
Thursday, February 9, 2017 6:00 p.m. Formal Meeting  
Thursday, February 16, 2017 6:00 p.m. Study Session  
Thursday, February 23, 2017 6:00 p.m. Formal Meeting 
Thursday, March 2, 2017 6:00 p.m.  Study Session  
Thursday, March 9, 2017 6:00 p.m. Formal Meeting 
Thursday, March 16, 2017 6:00 p.m. Study Session  
Thursday, March 23, 2017 6:00 p.m. Formal Meeting  
Thursday, March 30, 2017 6:00 p.m. Study Session 
Thursday, April 6, 2017 6:00 p.m. Formal Meeting 
Thursday, April 13, 2017 6:00 p.m. Study Session 
Thursday, April 20, 2017 6:00 p.m. Formal Meeting 
Thursday, April 27, 2017 6:00 p.m. Study Session 
Thursday, May 4, 2017 6:00 p.m. Formal Meeting 
Thursday, May 11, 2017 6:00 p.m. Study Session  
Thursday, May 18, 2017 6:00 p.m. Formal Meeting 
Thursday, May 25, 2017 Noon Study Session  
Thursday, June 1, 2017 6:00 p.m. Formal Meeting 
Thursday, June 8, 2017 6:00 p.m. Study Session 
Thursday, June 15, 2017 6:00 p.m. Formal Meeting 
Thursday, June 22, 2017 6:00 p.m. Study Session 
Thursday, June 29, 2017 6:00 p.m. Formal Meeting 
Thursday, July 6, 2017 6:00 p.m. Study Session  
Thursday, July 13, 2017 6:00 p.m. Formal Meeting 
Thursday, July 20, 2017 6:00 p.m. Study Session 
Thursday, July 27, 2017 6:00 p.m. Formal Meeting 
Thursday, August 3, 2017 6:00 p.m. Study Session 



December 8, 2016  
 
 

3 
 

Thursday, August 10, 2017 6:00 p.m. Formal Meeting  
Thursday, August 17, 2017 6:00 p.m. Study Session 
Thursday, August 24, 2017 6:00 p.m. Formal Meeting  
Thursday, August 31, 2017 Noon Study Session 
Thursday, September 7, 2017 6:00 p.m. Formal Meeting  
Thursday, September 14, 2017 6:00 p.m. Study Session  
Thursday, September 21, 2017 6:00 p.m. Formal Meeting  
Thursday, September 28, 2017 6:00 p.m. Study Session  
Thursday, October 5, 2017 6:00 p.m. Formal Meeting  
Thursday, October 12, 2017 6:00 p.m. Study Session 
Thursday, October 19, 2017 6:00 p.m. Formal Meeting 
Thursday, October 26, 2017 6:00 p.m. Study Session 
Thursday, November 2, 2017 6:00 p.m. Formal Meeting 
Thursday, November 9, 2017 6:00 p.m. Study Session  
Thursday, November 16, 2017 6:00 p.m. Formal Meeting 
Monday, November 20, 2017 Noon Study Session 
Thursday, November 30, 2017 6:00 p.m. Formal Meeting 
Thursday, December 7, 2017 6:00 p.m. Study Session 
Thursday, December 14, 2017 6:00 p.m. Formal Meeting  
Thursday, December 21, 2017 Noon Study Session 
Thursday, December 28, 2017 Noon Formal Meeting  
 
Ayes: Waterman, Williams, Woodward, Carter, Holland, Pietila and Taylor-Burks 
No: None 
Resolution Passed. 

 
16-319  Request for approval of the amended City Council Rules and Procedures. Moved by 
Councilperson Pietila and supported by Councilperson Williams. 
 
  Ayes: Williams, Woodward, Carter, Holland, Pietila, Taylor-Burks and Waterman 
  No: None 
  Motion Carried. 
 
16-320  Resolution for the adoption of the amended City Council Rules and Procedures. 
Moved by Councilperson Williams and supported by Councilperson Woodward. 
 
Therefore, Be It Resolved, that the Pontiac City Council adopts the amended version of the 9th 
Pontiac City Council Rules and Procedures (Rules are attached).  
 

The 9th Pontiac City Council Rules and Procedures 
 

Effective January 1, 2017 
 
All meetings of the city council will be held in compliance with state statutes, including the Open 
Meetings Act, 1976 PA 267 as amended, and with these rules. 
 
Meeting Times 
 
The city council meetings will be held every Thursday of each month beginning at 6:00 p.m. at City Hall 
in the Council Chambers for formal meetings and/or The City Council Conference Room for Study 



December 8, 2016  
 
 

4 
 

Session meetings unless otherwise rescheduled by resolution of the council.  The Ninth Council has 
decided to implement Study Sessions and Formal Meetings. These meeting will alternate week to week.  
 
Formal Meeting  
 
During the formal meetings the City Council proceed through the formal agenda and take action on 
agenda items. 
  
Special meetings 
 
 A special meeting shall be called by the mayor or any two members of council. A 24 hours written notice 
to each member of the council served personally or left at the councilmember’s usual place of residence is 
required. However, any special meeting at which all council members are present or have given written 
consent shall be a legal meeting for such purposes, without such written notice.   Special meeting notices 
shall state the purpose of the meeting. No official action shall be transacted at any special meeting of the 
council unless the item has been stated in the notice of such meeting. 
 
Posting requirements for regular and special meetings 
 

a. Within 10 days after the first meeting of the council following the election, a public notice stating 
the dates, times and places of the regular monthly council meetings will be posted at the City 
Clerk's Office and on the City's web page. 

 
b. For a rescheduled regular or special meeting of the council, a public notice stating the date, time, 

and place of the meeting shall be posted at least 18 hours before the meeting at the City Clerk's 
Office and on the City's web site.  Special meeting notices shall also state the purpose of the 
meeting. 

 
c. The notice described above is not required for a meeting of the council in emergency session in 

the event of a severe and imminent threat to the health, safety or welfare of the public when two-
thirds of the members of the council determine that delay would be detrimental to the city’s 
efforts in responding to the threat. 

 
 
Minutes of regular and special meetings 
 
The clerk shall attend the council meetings and record all proceedings and resolutions of the council in 
accordance with the Open Meetings Act.  In the absence of the clerk, the deputy clerk shall perform the 
clerk’s duties. 
 
At a minimum, the minutes shall indicate the date, place, type (regular or special), and time of meeting; 
the names of all elected city officials present at roll call; the name and time of arrival of any elected 
official not present at roll call; the name and time of departure of any elected official before adjournment; 
the maker and supporter of all motions and resolutions which are voted upon by the council; an indication 
of how each council member present voted on a motion or resolution; the call of the chair as to the 
passage or failure of the motion or resolution; and the time of adjournment.  For public comment, only the 
number of individuals speaking need be included in the minutes.  For a public hearing, the name of the 
person addressing the council and a short description of the nature of the comments. 
 



December 8, 2016  
 
 

5 
 

A copy of the minutes of each regular or special council meeting shall be available for public inspection 
at the City Clerk's Office during regular business hours. 
 
Conduct of meetings 
 
Meetings to be public 
 
All regular and special meetings of the council shall be open to the public. Citizens shall have a 
reasonable opportunity to be heard in accordance with such rules and regulations as the council may 
determine, except that the meetings may be closed to the public and the media in accordance with the 
Open Meetings Act. 
 
All official meetings of the council and its committees shall be open to the media, freely subject to 
recording by radio, television and photographic services at any time, provided that such arrangements do 
not interfere with the orderly conduct of the meetings. 
 
Agenda preparation 
 
An agenda for each regular council meeting shall be prepared by the city clerk with the following order of 
business: The agenda will be as follows for the Formal Meetings. 
 
Formal Meetings 

1. Call to order 
2. Invocation  
3. Pledge of Allegiance 
4. Roll Call 
5. Authorization to Excuse Members from the Meeting 
6. Amendments to and approve of the agenda  
7. Approval of the Minutes  
8. Deputy Mayor Report or Departmental Head Reports  
9. Special Presentation (If any) 
10. Public Hearings (If any) 
11. Recognition of Elected Officials  (If any) 
12. Agenda Address (2 Minute Limit) 
13. Agenda Items  
14. Public Comment (5 Minute Limit) 
15. Mayor, Clerk and Council Closing Comments (7 Minute Limit) 
16. Adjournment  

 
            The Agenda will be as follows for Study Session Meetings 
 
Study Session 

1. Call to order 
2. Roll Call 
3. Authorization to Excuse Members from the Meeting 
4. Public Comment 
5. Review of all agenda items 
6. Adjournment 

 



December 8, 2016  
 
 

6 
 

All items presented to the city council for action shall be placed on the first possible agenda by the city 
clerk.  The deadline to submit an item to the clerk to place on the agenda shall be noon on the Tuesday 
before a Study Session Meeting.  The clerk shall distribute the agenda by email no later than 5:00 p.m. on 
Tuesday.  Complete agenda packets, excluding confidential information, shall be posted on the City's web 
site concurrent with distribution of the agenda packet to the council members. 
Any councilmember shall have the right to add items to the regular agenda before it is approved. 
 
Agenda distribution 
 
The clerk is responsible for the agenda distribution which is emailed to each councilmember forty-eight 
(48) hours or more prior to each council meeting.  In addition, the clerk posts each agenda to the city 
website 48 hours prior to each meeting for public access.  Agendas for special meetings shall be 
distributed with the notice of special meeting and posted on the City's website. 
 
Quorum 
 
A majority of the entire elected or appointed and sworn members of the council shall constitute a quorum 
for the transaction of business at all council meetings.  In the absence of a quorum, a lesser number may 
adjourn any meeting to a later time or date with appropriate public notice.  The council may adopt an 
ordinance to prescribe penalties. 
 
Attendance at council meetings 
 
Council is empowered by Article III – Legislative Branch, Section 3.107 of the charter to adjourn a 
meeting if a quorum is not present and compel attendance in a manner prescribed by its ordinance.  In the 
event that the member’s absences continue for more than five consecutive regular meetings of the council, 
the council may declare the seat vacant in accordance with Section 3.119 of the charter. 
 
Presiding officer 
 
The presiding officer shall be responsible for enforcing these rules of procedure and for enforcing orderly 
conduct at meetings.  The council president is ordinarily the presiding officer.  If the Council President is 
absence, The Council President Pro Tem will preside over the meeting.  In the absence of both the 
Council President and the Council President Pro Tem at the same meeting, the council shall decide who 
presides over the meeting via alphabetical rotating order of the last name of the councilmembers.  
 
Disorderly conduct 
 
The president may call to order any person who is being disorderly by speaking out of order or otherwise 
disrupting the proceedings, failing to be germane, speaking longer than the allotted time or speaking 
vulgarities.  Such person shall be seated until the chair determines whether the person is in order. 
 
Closed meetings 
 
Purpose 
 
Closed meetings may be held only for the reasons authorized in the Open Meetings Act, which are the 
following: 
 



December 8, 2016  
 
 

7 
 

a. To consider the dismissal, suspension, or disciplining of, or to hear complaints or charges 
brought against a public officer, employee, staff member or individual agent when the 
named person requests a closed meeting. 

 
b. For strategy and negotiation sessions connected with the negotiation of a collective 

bargaining agreement when either negotiating party requests a closed hearing. 
 

c. To consider the purchase or lease of real property up to the time an option to purchase or 
lease that real property is obtained. 

 
d. To consult with the municipal attorney or another attorney regarding trial or settlement 

strategy in connection with specific pending litigation, but only when an open meeting 
would have a detrimental financial effect on the litigating or settlement position of the 
council. 

 
e. To review the specific contents of an application for employment or appointment to a 

public office when a candidate requests that the application remain confidential.  
However, all interviews by a public body for employment or appointment to a public 
office shall be held in an open meeting.  

 
f. To consider material exempt from discussion or disclosure by state or federal statute. 

 
Calling closed meetings 
 
At a regular or special meeting, the councilmembers elected or appointed and serving, by a two-thirds roll 
call vote may call a closed session under the conditions outlined in the Open Meetings Act.  The roll call 
vote and purpose(s) for calling the closed meeting shall be entered into the minutes of the public part of 
the meeting at which the vote is taken. 
 
Minutes of closed meetings 
 
A separate set of minutes shall be taken by the clerk or the designated secretary of the council at the 
closed session.  These minutes will be retained by the clerk, shall not be available to the public, and shall 
only be disclosed if required by civil action, as authorized by the Michigan Open Meetings Act.  These 
minutes may be destroyed one year and one day after approval of the minutes of the regular meeting at 
which the closed session was approved. 
 
Discussion and voting 
 
Rules of parliamentary procedure 
 
The rules of parliamentary practice, as contained in the 10th edition of Robert’s Rules of Order, shall 
govern the council in all cases to which they are applicable, provided they are not in conflict with these 
rules, city ordinances or applicable state statutes.  The presiding officer may appoint a parliamentarian.  
The chair shall preserve order and decorum and may speak to points of order in preference to other 
councilmembers.   
 
 
Conduct of discussion 
 



December 8, 2016  
 
 

8 
 

During the council discussion and debate, no member shall speak until recognized for that purpose by the 
chair.  After such recognition, the member shall confine discussion to the question at hand and to its 
merits and shall not be interrupted except by a point of order or privilege raised by another member.  
Speakers should address their remarks to the chair, maintain a courteous tone and avoid interjecting a 
personal note into debate. 
 
Ordinances and resolutions 
 
A vote on all ordinances and resolutions shall be taken by a roll call vote and entered in the minutes 
unless it is a unanimous vote.  If the vote is unanimous, it shall be necessary only to so state in the 
minutes, unless a roll call vote is required by law or by council rules. 
 
 
Roll Call 
 
In all roll call votes, the names of the members of the council shall be called in rotating alphabetical 
order.   
 
Citizen participation 
 
Each regular and special council meeting agenda shall provide reserved time for citizen participation.  
During citizen participation, each individual shall address the City Council in an orderly and dignified 
manner and shall not engage in conduct or language that disrupts, makes fun of, or otherwise impedes the 
orderly conduct of the Council Meeting.  In addition, members of the audience shall not engage in 
disorderly or boisterous activity including but not limited to; the utterance of loud, obnoxious, 
threatening, or abusive language, cheering, whistling, or any other acts that disturb, disrupt, or impede, or 
otherwise interfere with the orderly conduct of the City Council Meeting.  
 
Agenda Address 
 
The Council has included in its agenda a time for Agenda Address. Agenda Address will allow the 
audience to comment on agenda items on the agenda of the City Council Meeting.  The individuals 
addressing the body will have 3 minutes to complete the Agenda Address. All individuals wishing to 
participate in the Agenda Address will have to fill out an Agenda Address Card which will be located in 
the City Clerk’s Office. The Agenda Address Card shall require the person to identify themselves, a 
method of contact, and the subject matter of their comments, and such other information the Council 
President may require. The Agenda Address Card has to completed and turned in to the Clerk’s Office by 
Wednesday at 4:30 p.m. to be considered for the following council meeting.   Individuals who have 
submitted an Agenda Address Card to speak must be present in the City Council Chambers when their 
name is called or they will lose their turn to speak. 
 
Public Comment 
 
The Council has included in its agenda a time for Public Comments. The Public Comment portion of the 
agenda will allow individuals to comment on non-agenda items.  The individuals addressing the body will 
have 5 minutes to complete public comment.  All individuals wishing to participate during public 
comment will have to complete the Public Comment Sign-In Sheet which will be located in the City 
Council Chambers on a clip board.  
The Public Comment Sign In-Sheet shall require the person to identify themselves, a method of contact, 
and the subject matter of their comments, and such other information the Council President may require.  



December 8, 2016  
 
 

9 
 

The Public Comment Sign-In Sheet will be picked up before the call of order of the meeting.   If your 
name is not on the Public Comment Sign-In Sheet once picked up you will not be allowed to speak during 
Public Comment.  Individuals who have submitted their information on the sign in sheet to speak must be 
present in the City Council Chambers when their name is called or they will lose their turn to speak. 
 
 
Miscellaneous 
 
Suspension of rules 
 
The rules of the council may be suspended for a specified portion of a meeting by an affirmative vote of 
two-thirds of the members present except that council actions shall conform to state statutes and to the 
Michigan and United States Constitutions.   
 
Committees 
 
Standing and special committees of council 
 
The city shall have the following standing committees: 
Finance/Human Resource Committee: Responsible for meeting with the Finance Director to review 
periodic financial reports; responsible for reviewing the proposed budget.   This committee will meet once 
a month or as needed. 
 
Public Safety Committee: Responsible for meeting with the Mayor and representatives of the City's 
police, fire, and emergency medical transport service providers.  This committee will meet once a month 
or as needed. 
 
Community Development Committee: Responsible for meeting with the Mayor and Community 
Development Director concerning the operations and functions of the Community Development 
Department. This committee will be meeting once a month or as needed. 
 
Public Works/Parks and Recreation Committee: Responsible for meeting with the Mayor and Public 
Works Director concerning the operations and functions of the Public Works Department. This committee 
will meet once a month or as needed 
  
Information Technology Subcommittee: Responsible for meeting with the Mayor and the IT Department 
concerning the operations and function of the IT Department.  This committee will be meeting as needed.  
 
Law and 50th District Court Subcommittee- Responsible for meeting with Judges or Court Reps 
concerning the operations and functions of the 50th Court.   This committee will be meeting as needed.   
 
Forensic Audit Subcommittee- This committee will meet as needed. 
 
Real Estate Subcommittee-This committee will meet as needed. 
 
Cable Subcommittee-This committee will meet as need.  
 
Committee members will be appointed by the president.  They shall be members of the council.  The 
president shall fill any committee vacancies.  The committee member shall serve for a term of one year 
and may be re-appointed.  Committees shall be comprised of at least three council members and one 



December 8, 2016  
 
 

10 
 

alternate who may attend if a regular member is unable to attend.  Committees can discuss policy with 
department heads.  Committees cannot make final decisions, but may recommend actions to the Council.  
Committees may determine their own meeting schedule.  Committee meetings at which department heads 
will be present shall be scheduled at a time mutually acceptable to both the committee and the department 
head. 
 
Committees shall present both oral and written reports.  The committee shall designate a member to 
prepare the written report for the committee.  The written report shall indicate the date and time of the 
committee meeting, all persons present, and the subject matter of discussion with some detail.  If a 
committee is making a recommendation to the Council as a body, then at least two of the three members 
of the committee must be noted as being in support of the recommendation. 
 
Special committees may be established for a specific period of time by the president or by a resolution of 
the council which specifies the task of the special committee and the date of its dissolution.  Special 
committees shall present reports in the same manner as standing committees. 
 
  Ayes: Woodward, Carter, Holland, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman and Williams 
  No: None 
  Resolution Passed. 
 
16-321  Resolution for approval of the updated Oakland County Law Enforcement services 
agreement January 1, 2017 – December 31, 2018. Moved by Councilperson Williams and supported by 
Councilperson Pietila. 
 
Whereas, the City required by law to provide enforcement services for its residents and taxpayers; and, 
Whereas, the current agreement with the Oakland County Sheriff’s Office expires on December 31, 2016; 
and,  
Whereas, the County and City may enter into an agreement by which the Oakland County Sheriff’s Office 
would provide law enforcement services for the City: and, 
Whereas, the Oakland County Sheriff’s agrees to provide law enforcement services for the City under the 
terms and conditions of the Agreement; 
Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved, that the City Council, upon the recommendation of the Mayor and 
Finance Director accepts the Oakland County Sheriff’s Office 2017-2018 Law Enforcement Services 
Agreement with the City of Pontiac and authorizes the Mayor to sign document as presented.  
 
  Ayes: Carter, Holland, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams and Woodward 
  No: None 
  Resolution Passed. 
 
16-322  Resolution for approval of the updated Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG) Fiscal Year 2017 proposed allocations. Moved by Councilperson Pietila and supported by 
Councilperson Woodward. 
Whereas, the City Council has received the Community Development Department recommendations for 
projects for the CDBG FY 2017 and  
Whereas, the Community Development Department has recommended $300,000 be allocated to the 
sidewalk project and $431,526 to the demolition and clearance program and 
Whereas, the City Council held a public hearing on the proposed allocations for FY 2017 on December 1, 
2016. 



December 8, 2016  
 
 

11 
 

Now, Therefore Be It Resolved, the Pontiac City Council approves the submission of the CDBG FY 2017 
application with the proposed allocations to the Oakland County Community and Home Improvement 
Division.  
 
  Ayes: Holland, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams, Woodward and Carter  
  No: None 
  Resolution Passed. 
 
16-323  Request for Council to schedule a public hearing regarding the amendment of the 
TIFA boundaries on January 5, 2017 at 6:00 p.m. Moved by Councilperson Holland and supported by 
Councilperson Woodward. 
 
Therefore, Be It Resolved, that the Pontiac City Council shall hold a public hearing during its regular 
scheduled City Council meeting at 6:00 p.m. on Thursday, January 5, 2017 in Pontiac City Hall Council 
Chambers, 47450 Woodward Ave., for the purpose of receiving public comment on the proposal to 
remove from the boundaries of the Tax Increment Finance Authority parcels 14-29-428-002, 14-29-284-
007 and 14-29-284-008. 
 
  Ayes: Carter, Holland, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams and Woodward 
  No: None 
  Resolution Passed.  
 
Councilman Don Woodward left meeting at 7:00 p.m. 
 
There were 6 individuals who addressed the body during public comment. 
 
Honorable Mayor Deirdre Waterman Reported 
 
Pro-tem Mary Pietila left meeting at 7:25 p.m. 
 
Deputy Clerk Sheila R. Grandison, Councilman Randy Carter, Councilwoman Taylor-Burks, Councilman 
Mark Holland, Councilman Kermit Williams and President Patrice Waterman made closing comments. 
City Attorney J. Travis Mihelick had no closing comments. 
 

  President Patrice Waterman adjourned the meeting at 8:02 p.m.  
 
 
 

_________________________________ 
                                                                        SHEILA R. GRANDISON                              
                                                                              DEPUTY CITY CLERK 



December 9, 2016 Public Safety Subcommittee Meeting, 

Attendees, Councilmembers: Chairperson Mary Pietila, Don Woodward, Randy Carter, OCSD Capt. Gary Miller, Star EMS 

Risk Manager Brian Long, Waterford Fire was absent although reports were furnished via email. 

M r. Long reported that 11 infant car seats were given away to those in need in November, 8 to date in December in 

conjunction with the program with St. Joseph Mercy Oakland Hospital and the Oakland Family Physicians on Saginaw. 

2 new vehicles (Trans vans) are being readied for on the road use. In November a flight tra ining with a U of M Helicopter 

was brought to Pontiac. Additional Nar Can training is being planned for the upcoming yea r. 

Captain Miller informed us that because of the ongo ing concerns, of guns, underage drinking and illegal behavior at 7N 

Saginaw, the temporary liquor licenses that were applied for have been denied, as well as the 2 wh ich were app lied for 

by the owner's Nonprofit 501c3, in fact after a review of reports, and documentation filed with the MLCC, 7 N. Saginaw 

is now on the list with the MLCC of Not Eligible for a liquor license. This will not affect the Micro-Brewery license on the 

first floor as that is not an alcohol license, which is a beer license. 

There was some conversation regarding the extreme amount of Graffiti which seems to be overlooked by code 

enforcement. The Captain spoke to us about how this violation could be add ressed, if all parties were to designate the 

OCSD to act upon it, as an agent for both Community Development and Department of Public Works. There would be 

no additional cost to the City, but it would definitely benefit our exterior aesthetics. 

Meeting adjourned at 10:00 a.m . Minutes were recorded by Council ProTem, Mary Pietila . 



~EJICO~) 

The Village at Bloomfield Development Overview 
City of Pontiac Brownfield Redevelopment Authority 

DECEMBER 8, 2016 

>>> 
f J 



Agenda 

• Site History 

• Development Plan 

• Status of Uses 

• Entitlements 

• Financial Projections 

• City of Pontiac Benefits 

• Incentives 

• Schedule Milestones 

>>> 



• 

• 

• 

Site History 
1992 - Local Developer Craig Schubiner Begins Assembling Land for the Future 
Bloomfield Park 

1999 - Schubiner Unveils His Original Vision for Bloomfield Park 

2001 - Schubiner Turns to Pontiac After $2B Plan is Rejected by Bloomfield Township. 
Pontiac Voters Approve Annexation of Approx. 95% of Bloomfield Park Property 

2002 - Pontiac and Bloomfield Township Settle Disputes w/Development and Revenue
Sharing Arrangements 

2006- Schubiner Hands Over Most Development Duties to National Firms Coventry Real 
Estate Advisors and DDR. Ground Broken for Bloomfield Park's $350M First Phase 

• 2008 - Construction Stops Following the Investment of Nearly $250M 

>>> 



Site History 

• 2013 - Mortgage Holder Wells Fargo Reaches Tentative Deal to Sell Foreclosure Rights to 
Grand/Sakwa Development - Deal Eventually Unravels 

• October 2014 - REDICO wjNational Investment Partner PCCP Acquires Foreclosure 
Rights 

.. January 2015 - REDICO Forecloses on Property 

• June 2015 - REDICO Obtains Title to Property - Rebrands Project 'The Village at 
Bloomfield' 

September 2016 - REDICO Formally Submits Proposed Development Plan to City of 
Pontiac, Bloomfield Township & Joint Development Council 

• January 2017 - Demolition 

• April 2017 - Construction Commencement 

• 2018 - Various Components of Project to Open 

>>> 
~Ell CO p 



~ 
Ill u -a 

-c 
~ 

c 
CD 
< 
CD -0 
-c 
3 
CD 
:::l .... 
-o -D) 
:::l 

N\tld 1N:3~d0l:3/\30- Ol31_j~QOl8 1 \t 38\tlll/\ 3H1 



Status of Uses 
• Retail 

• Home Improvement Retailer 

~ Executed Land Sale Agreement for 15.7 Acres 
.. 

• 

Anticipate Closing on Sale in January 2017 

Construction Commencement Spring/Summer 2017 

Opening 2nd Half of 2018 

.. Soft Goods Retailers - Executed Letters of Intent w;Major National Retailer for Two Stores 
Totaling 47,000 Square Feet 

.. Grocer- In Discussions w/Three Specialty Grocers for 20,000 to 30,000 SF 

• Fitness - Negotiating LOI w;Major National Fitness Club for 30,000 SF Facility 

• Theater 
• Negotiating Lease wjMajor National Theater Developer/Operator for Luxury 40,000 SF 10-Screen 

Multi-Plex 

Office 
• Negotiating LOI w/Michigan-Based Manufacturer for 23,000 SF Headquarters and R&D Facility 

• REDICO Considering Headquarters Relocation of Affiliate Company 

))) 
~Ell CO ( 



Status of Uses 
• Multi-Family 

• Engaged Friedman Integrated Real Estate Solutions to Market Opportunity Nationally 

• Received Three Responsive LOis 

• Executed Land Sale Agreement w/Locally Based National Developer/Owner/Operator 

• Proposing Multi-Phase Development of 400- 450 Market Rate Units 

• Anticipate Construction Commencement in 2017 w/First Phase Delivered to Market in 2018 

• Seniors Housing 
• REDICO Affiliate American House Contemplating Seniors Housing Development 

• Anticipate Construction Commencement in Late 2017 wjDelivery in Late 2018 

))) 
~i)ICO 

p 



Entitlements 
• Entitlements 

• Oversight of Project (w/Exception of the 'Thumb Parcel') Rests w/ Joint Development Council As 
Supported by Pontiac City Council and Bloomfield Township Board of Trustees 

• Joint Development Council 

Honorable Mayor Deirdre Waterman - City of Pontiac 

Supervisor Leo Savoie- Bloomfield Township 

Dennis Cowan - President & CEO Plunkett Cooney 

• Master Plan Formal Submittal Made 9/15/16 and Amended 12/7/16 w/Requested Amendments 
to Development Agreement 

Residential Unit Size -Allow Market Appropriate Range of Sizes from 700 SF to 1,300 SF 

Allow for 'Limited-Service' Hotel Concepts 

Allow for a Minimum Building Height of 24' for a Limited Number of Structures (Current 
Minimum is 30') 

Increase Development and Building Signage Allowances to Project-Appropriate Levels 

.. The Preliminary Master Plan Was Accepted for Filing by the JDC on 9/21/16 

• Anticipate Development Agreement Amendments Approval in December 2016 

• Site Plan Approvals Will be Sought for Each Component Individually- 1st Half 2017 

~EJICO PC 



Financial Projections 
Projected Investment 
• Commercial/Retail - $80M - $100M 

~ Multi-Family- $45M - $60M 

• Seniors- $15M- $20M 

Total Projected Investment- $140M - $180M 

Equity Investment- $42M - $54M 

Commercial/Retail Return Projections 
Target 

Yield-On-Cost 

I nterna I-Rate-Of-Return 
Equity Multiple 

10% 

20-25% 
>2x 

Factors Resulting in Lower than Target Returns 
Execution Time 

• Increase in Construction Costs 

.. Rental Rates Slow to Rebound 

.. Lower than Projected Land Sa les 

li)ICO 

Projected 

9.7% 

16.7% 
1.9x 

p 

))) 



City of Pontiac Benefits 
Direct Financial (Reviewed wjCity of Pontiac Finance Director) 

3 Mils to Bloomfield Twp 

Public Safety 

Immediate Inflows 

NA 

Annual Inflows 

NA 

Additional DPW (Roads, Lights, etc.) NA 

City Income Tax 

Construction Activity 

New Businesses 

New Employees 

New Residents 

Other Income: Fees & Permits 

Revenue Sharing 

Total: 

Annual Positive Impact: 

$312,000 

$151,740 

$463,740 

Net Present Value Over 30 Years: 

~iJICO 

$100,000 

$149,400 

$194,400 

$33,696 

$443,800 

$105,000 

$2,500,000 

Annual Outflows 

$0 

$150,000 

$150,000 

$38,800 

$338,800 

}}} 
( 



City of Pontiac Benefits 
Economic & Tangible/Intangible Benefits 

" 555 Direct Full-Time Equivalent Construction Jobs (1,248 FTE Secondary and Induced) 

$93.5M in Labor Income from Construction (Includes Secondary and Induced) 

" 830 Permanent FTE Jobs {1,144 FTE Secondary and Induced) 

.. $53.8M in Permanent Labor Income (Includes Secondary and Induced) 

" REDICO Working w/City of Pontiac to Ensure Local Involvement (Development Agreement) 

.. Removes Taint & Eyesore of Huge Blighted Failed Project 

" First Mixed-Use Project of Its Kind in Pontiac wjUnified Master-Development Design Character 

.. Market Currently Underserved by Specialty Grocers, Entertainment (Theater), Restaurants 

.. First New Large Market Rate Multi-Family Development in Decades 

Affordable High-Quality Residential Opportunity for Seniors 

• New Office/Research & Development Opportunity 

~ Development Supporting New Substation Installation by DTE Providing 4x the Capacity Required by The 
Village at Bloomfield 

Enhances Appeal of Southwest Pontiac as a Commercial Center 

Interest of Large Out-of-State Institutional Investor 

>>> 
~Ell CO PC 



Incentives 
Tax-Increment Financing (TIF) 

• Amended Existing Brownfield Plan - Supported for Adoption by Oakland County Brownfield 
Authority Board on 9/15/16 

.. Projecting $50M in Eligible Expenses for Reimbursement (Prior Incurred & Future) 

Demolition 

Site Preparation 

Infrastructure 

En vi ron menta I Activities; Remediation 

Parking Structures 

.. Tax Increment Captured for Up to 35 Years 

• Net Present Value of TIF Projected to be -$20M at 9% Discount Factor 

• Concurrent Resolution by City of Pontiac and RTAB Pending 

• Final Adoption would be by Oakland County Board of Commissioners Following Concurrence by City 
of Pontiac and RTAB 

• MEDC Support of School Tax Capture 

>>> 
~EJICO ( 



Schedule Milestones 
October 2014 - Purchased Foreclosure Rights 

• June 2015 - Acquired Title to Property 

• July 2015 - August 2016 - Marketed Opportunity to Users and Secured Anchor 
Retail Tenant and Multi-Family Developer 

September 2016- Submitted Proposed Development Plan to City of Pontiac, 
Bloomfield Township and Joint Development Council 

• October 2016 - Oakland County Brownfield Redevelopment Authority Support of 
Amended Brownfield Plan 

• December 2016 - Amendments to Development Agreement Approved/City of 
Pontiac and RTAB Resolution Supporting Brownfield Plan 

• January 2017 - OCBRA Adoption of Brownfield Plan 

.. January 2017 - Commence Demolition 

• March 2017 - Commence Site Infrastructure 

• June - Commence Vertical Construction 

Summer/Fall 2018 - Retail Occupancy 

• Winter 2018/2019 - Phase I Multi-Family & Seniors Occupancy 

~EJICO~ 

))) 
( 



8 -n 
Ill 
~ 



5)1C 
December 5, 2016 

Re: Security Assessment for Village at Bloomfield Development 

To Whom It May Concern: 
J / 

The City of Pontiac's Mayor's Office has requested that REDICO assess the marginal impact of The 
Village at Bloomfield mixed-use development on the City's existing service infrastructure (i.e. Police, 
Fire, and EMS). The goal of th is dialogue is to establish an appropriately tailored plan for basic security 
and emergency services for this project. To this end REDICO is providing the enclosed analysis and 
recommendations. 

REDICO ovvns and manages a substantial portfolio of retail developments throughout southeast 
Michigan. To assess the impact of 415 ,000 square feet of retail and office uses that we are proposing to 
build in Pontiac-along with up to 432 apartments and 100 units of senior housing-we have drawn the 
following three comparisons based on size and prominence in their respective markets: 

l . Gateway Marketplace. Detroit, MI 
2. Independence Marketplace. Allen Park, MI 
3. Green Oak Village Place. Brighton, MI 

First, we have taken stock of the security measures deployed at each of these properties. Second, we 
describe data on a full year (20 15) of security and emergency incidents at these properties, which we 
obtained by submittrng FOrA requests to the various jurisdictions. Third, and finally we offer 
recommendations for appropriate levels of service for the Village at Bloomfield based on this feedback. 

ONE TOWNE SQUARE ! SUITE 1600 I SOUTHFiELD I MICHIGAN 148076 I t 248 827 1700 I F 248 827 '1717 
VVWWREDICO,COM • 



~5JICO 
I. Comparable Properties and Site-Specific Security Measures 

1. Gateway Marketplace. Detroit, MI 
(SE corner of Eight Mile Rd and Woodward Ave) 

350,000 square foot Meijer-anchored power center retail development 

" 

.. 

ll 

II 

52 camera CCTV system with " license plate" definition cameras 
i. We pay roughly $3,901 per month on a five-year term with three recorders. We 

\Viii own the system after the fifth year. 
16 hour per day, seven day per week on-site security coverage: 

1. Off-duty DPD officer in marked patrol car overnight 8 hours (anned) 
ii. Ptivate security during daytime and evening 8 hours by ASIS (unarmed) 

iii. $3,083 per week for the 16 hours of combined coverage 
iv. Vehicle, cellular, and all overhead costs included in contract 

rvleij er has own supplemental private security patrol 16 hours a day contracting directly 
with DPD 
Combined 24-hour coverage of entire center 

2. Independence Marketplace. Allen Park, Ml 
(NE corner of Southfield Fwy and W Outer Dr) 

330,000 square foot Lowe's-anchored power center retail development 

"' Six camera CCTV system, standard definition 
" No private security. Traditional local police presence 

3. Green Oak Village Place. Brighton, MJ 
(US-23) 

425,000 square foot shopping center 

" CCTV system with "license plate" definition cameras 
m Private security Monday through Friday, 4pm - IOpm (unarmed) 

ONE TOWNE SQUARE I SUITE 1600 I SOUTHFIELD I MICHIGAN 148076 I T 248 827 1700 i F 248 827 ·t 71 7 
WWVv.REDfCO COM 



5)1(0 
II. Security and Emergency Response Data 

1. Gatewav Marketplace Detroit MI 

Security 

Data not available, FOIA. response pending. Current private security measures are sufficient tor 
tenant's needs. Meijer employs supplemental security 16 hours daily. 

Fire and EMS 

Data not available, FOIA response pending. Property Manager unaware of noteworthy emergencies. 

2. Independence Marketplace. Allen Park. MI 

Security 

In 2015 there were a total of 125 calls associated with this property, 40 to 50 of which were related to 
incidental traffic stops for speeding near the center. The annual total for calls in connection with the 
center is estimated to at 80 to 100 per year. We do not have data on the types of calls, but typically 
the majority of these are due to false alarms. 

Fire & EMS 

The Allen Park Fire Department & EMS recorded a total of 25 service runs to Independence 
Marketplace during 2015. Fire alarms accounted for seven of these runs, and there were 17 EMS 
calls. There was one vehic le accident. 

3. Green Oak Village Place. Brighton, MJ 

Security 

The Livingston County Sheriff registered 704 total visits to the center during 20 15, most of which 
were non-emergency or standard patrol services to the center (over 400 of the visits were routine 
checks of the grounds). This shopping center has a relatively large number of small tenants, and 
being that it is one of the county's two major commercial centers it tends to be a magnet for pollee 
activity in the area. 

Of these visits, approximately 57.5% were routine checks of the area and buildings. Just over 10% of 
the visits were in response to false tenant alarms, and a further l 0% were due to Police assisting in 
EMS and Fire runs. Another 7.5% of the visits were liquor license investigations of the various 
restaurants, arid 7.5% were due to tenant lockouts. The final 7.5% of cases consisted of 

ONE TOWNE SQUARE I SUITE 1600 i SOUTHFIELD I MICHIGAN 148076 i T 248 827 1700 iF 248 827 1717 
WWW.REDICO.COM 



~5)1CO 
miscellaneous traffic and suspicious vehicle stops, 3 hit-and-runs, 3 domestic disputes, 6 cases of 
larceny, and 5 cases of retail fraud. 

Fire &EM.r:; 

In 2015 there were 12 EMS runs and 21 Fire department runs. At least 20 of these were very minor 
false alanns or calls cancelled while response was en route. 

III. Village at Bloomfield Security Recommendations 

Based on the size and character of the proposed deve1opment, our Property Manager and development 
partners have suggested the following: 

Retail Center 

We anticipate installing a 24 camera CCTV system with license-plate definition. We may consider 
contracting with private security and/or the Oakland County Sheriff's office (such as we do at Gateway 
Marketplace) as needed. 

;i-!enards 

Menards wilt handle their own security _ on-site, supplemented with corporate monitoring, support, and 
video examination capabilities off-site. Menards does not anticipate needing a 24-hour presence at this 
store. Menards plans to hire local security for random overnight monitoring and an off-duty officer 
presence when store issues require. 

Residential 

The proposed project will have Property Management staff that are on-call and live on-site, however a 
dedicated security guard is not typical. The proposed apartment buildings all have closed corridors with 
secured entry doors that have a call system. The proposed site lighting for the project will illuminate the 
property. 

ONE TOWNE SQUARE I SUITE 1600 I SOUTHFIELD I MICHIGAN )480761 T 248 827 1700 IF 248 827 1717 
WWW.REDICO.COM 



City of Pontiac Resolution for Mr. Hubert Price 
 
WHEREAS,  The Pontiac City Council is deeply saddened by the loss of Pontiac Civil Rights Activist, 

Former County Commissioner and Former State Representative Mr. Hubert Price Jr., and,  
 
WHEREAS,  Mr. Hubert Price Jr. departed this life on December 7, 2016; and,  
 
WHEREAS,  Mr. Hubert Price Jr. was born in Pontiac, Michigan and graduated from Pontiac Central High 

School and attended Michigan State University; and,  
 
WHEREAS,  Mr. Hubert Price Jr.  was an extremely hardworking man, and activist for his community and 

was a member of a civil rights group, The Pontiac Organization of Black Youth or POOBY; 
and,  

 
WHEREAS,  Mr. Hubert Price Jr.  was a man of action as he fought for open housing in the City of Pontiac 

and worked to secure summer jobs for Pontiac youth and minorities in Oakland County; and,  
 
WHEREAS,  Mr. Hubert Price Jr. served as a Oakland County Commissioner from 1975-1994 and as a State 

Representative from 1994 to 2000; and, 
 
WHEREAS,  Mr. Hubert Price Jr. from 1988 to 1992, served as the President of the National Democratic 

County Officials and he addressed the Democratic National Convention in 1992; and, 
 
WHEREAS,  Mr. Hubert Price Jr. was always available to help others as there is not enough print in the 

world to describe the impact and memories he has left within the City of Pontiac; and, 
 
WHEREAS,  Mr. Hubert Price Jr. was active in countless organizations and was recognized by several 

community organizations for his leadership and lifelong commitment to public service; and,  
 
WHEREAS,  Mr. Hubert Price Jr. was truly a historian and always could share a story with a historical 

perspective; and,  
 
WHEREAS,  Mr. Hubert Price Jr. was a loving husband to Carolyn, and a caring father to their four children, 

Marc, John, Robyn, and MoNique and devoted grandfather to their three grandchildren. 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the members of the Pontiac City Council will greatly miss Mr. Hubert 
Price Jr. and all of his countless contributions to the City of Pontiac. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Members of Pontiac City Council, and members of this great 
community honor the life of an accomplished man and give our sincerest condolences to the family and friends of 
Mr. Hubert Price Jr.  
 
 

______________________________ 
Patrice Waterman, President 

 
_________________________          ______________________________ 
Mary Pietila, Pro-Tem           Don Woodward, Councilman 

 
__________________________          ______________________________ 
Randolph Carter, Councilman         Mark E. Holland, Sr., Councilman 

 
_____________________________        ______________________________ 
Doris Taylor-Burks, Councilwoman       Kermit Williams, Councilman 




